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Statement on the case of Derryduff Farm /Semple Partnership and Danske Bank NI  

PARLIAMENT HANSARD:….    RBS GRG and SMEs 18 January 2018  Volume 634  2.15 pm  

  Jim Shannon (Strangford) (DUP)  - part only 

“…… In the short time I have, I want to illustrate my point with the case of a large family dairy farm 

in Northern Ireland. It took out a £1 million loan with Danske Bank on the day of the highest LIBOR 

rate, on 1 October 2008, and since the day of £1 million loan drawdown on 22 January 2009, the farm 

has paid almost £500,000 in capital and—wait till you hear this one—£535,000 in interest, including 

another £62,000 because it moved to another bank. That bank has really screwed them, if I can use 

that word. I do not know if it is unparliamentary language and I apologise if it is, but that is how I 

feel. The Democratic Unionist party is watching how the FOS process handles this mis-selling 

case…………….”  

  The Economic Secretary to the Treasury (John Glen) – part only  

“……  We heard further powerful testimony from the hon. Member for Strangford (Jim Shannon), 

who used uncharacteristically strong language—legitimately so.” 

HANSARD  - 10 May 2018 at 1.30 pm  Backbench debate by APPG  Fair Business Banking  

  Jim Shannon (Strangford) (DUP)  

“First, I congratulate the hon. Member for East Lothian (Martin Whitfield) on securing the    debate. 

In my last speech on this matter in this House, I referred to a farm in the constituency of my hon. 

Friend the Member for East Londonderry (Mr Campbell); the family live in my constituency. I remind 

the House that they paid back half a million pounds in capital and £535,000 in interest, including 

£62,000 just to leave the bank they were with and go to another bank. The bank had the audacity to 

charge £6 for a transfer fee on the £1.25 million balance. What bank was this? It was the bank I am 

with—the Danske bank ..in Northern Ireland, the most profitable company in Northern Ireland, with 

profits of £117 million in 2016 and of £145 million in 2017. Its chief executive has said: “We are 

absolutely delighted to have retained top spot in the Belfast Telegraph’s listing of the Top 100 

companies in Northern Ireland”.    

Would it not have been better had it been in the top 100 for customer care and looking after its 

customers? That is what we should have had, instead of it trying to make more dividends for its 

shareholders.” 

 

FINAL VERSION - 3 December 2018       (a year after case files sent to FOS and FCA)  

Available for publication with APPG-FBB Tribunal documentation proposals in December 2018    

 

Illustrative example of a case at the height of the Financial Crisis in October 2008  which now 

trades as a Limited Company, having being sold a £1m Fixed Interest Loan at 6.55% pa by Danske 

Bank NI in an “embedded swap” to the Partnership which broke same in March 2018 and moved 

to HSBC in May 2018.  Under the APPG – FBB proposals they would have the ability to complain at 

their choice to either the “Ombudsman Service” or the “Financial Services Tribunal” as their 

forensic claim is for £420,000 is over £25,000 and under the £600,000 “proposed” thresholds. 

https://hansard.parliament.uk/search/MemberContributions?house=Commons&memberId=4131
https://hansard.parliament.uk/search/MemberContributions?house=Commons&memberId=4051
https://hansard.parliament.uk/search/MemberContributions?house=Commons&memberId=4131
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Summary of the case of Derryduff Farm / Semple Partnership   

by  Dr Fiona Sherriff, Director of Communications, APPG on Fair Business Banking 

 

Derryduff is a family dairy business which had banked with Northern Bank for generations. Northern 

was acquired by National Australia Bank (NAB) in 1988 and then sold on to Danske Bank in 2005. 

 

In 2008 they approached Danske Bank for development lending of £1.25m. They were persuaded to 

take out the majority of this on a long-term loan at a high, fixed rate of interest. 

 

The following year the milk price dropped and their profits suffered badly. They were paying 6.55% 

but the Bank of England rate was at an all-time low of 0.5% so they spoke to their Account Manager 

to try and move some of it across onto the variable rate part of their lending.  However, they 

couldn’t because he told them it would probably cost several hundred thousand pounds, and instead 

he would need more land security if profits didn’t improve. They had never been warned about any 

breakage fees and didn’t really understand what was being said, except that they couldn’t afford it, 

so were stuck.   

 

The Semples trusted Danske so they thought their predicament must have been their own fault. 

They are well known in the farming community in Northern Ireland and were embarrassed to have 

found themselves in such a corner.   They never imagined their bank would do them wrong and were 

totally reliant upon their Account Manager and Danske, so didn’t complain.  

 

For the next 9 years they experienced huge difficulties but just managed to keep their heads above 

water and even sustained the development of their herd. In 2017 the family came to realise they 

had probably been mis-sold the £1 million fixed rate loan so they made a complaint to Danske. This 

was rejected on the grounds that the sale was over six years ago and with help of Gregory Campbell 

MP, it was referred to the Financial Ombudsman (FOS). The bank repeatedly urged the FOS not to 

consider it and the FOS also threw it out on the grounds that the sale was more than 6 years ago and 

the Semples should have known they had cause for complaint to Danske and then FOS in 2009. 

 

Eventually in March 2018, after paying more than £400K than they would have done on a 100% 

variable rate loan, they paid £62000 more to escape the Danske loan and rebanked with another 

lender. At this point Danske charged them another £5K in additional fees and interest.  

 

When the Semples complained about this to Danske they were ignored, despite the case being 

under the spotlight in the FOS and the FCA, and the subject of part of a late June meeting between 

Jim Shannon MP and the CEO of the FCA, Andrew Bailey.   However, after sustained pressure, 

Danske did eventually apologise and repaid £4K of this in August. 
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Background 

 

The Semples had only ever experienced overdrafts and a small variable loan before.  They wanted to 

invest in the farm for their children but were in no hurry to make a decision over the new lending. 

However, in September /October 2008 Danske made repeated representations about the 

uncertainty of future interest rates and the danger of not signing up to a fixed rate quickly before 

the end of 2008. 

 

Most of the dealings with the bank, including the final deal calls, were handled by 22 year old 

Wesley.  This was because his older brother, Richard, had recently died, so he had returned to the 

farm to take over the management from his parents. This is a pure illustration of the inequality 

between SME customers and multi-million pound banking institutions, entering onto a contract of 

apparent equals. 

 

Wesley was put in a position where his father preferred variable rate lending but the bank were 

pressuring him to fix quickly so he accepted 80% on fixed and the remainder on variable. The rate of 

6.55% was exceptionally high but, based on what the bank was saying, he didn’t realise this at the 

time.  

 

Fortunately it was Wesley who eventually found a way out of this.  In March 2016, because his 

father was recovering from heart surgery and his mother was busy on the farm, he dealt with an 

annual review by Danske.  He became alarmed by the Bank’s attitude so sought advice from his 

uncle who introduced him to his cousin and their long-time business consultant. After about a year 

he realized that the family could have been victims of bank misconduct. 

The main alleged misconduct issues with this case are: 

Ҕ ¢ƘŜǊŜ ƛǎ ŀ ƭŀǊƎŜ ōƻŘȅ ƻŦ ŜǾƛŘŜƴŎŜ ǘƻ ǎǳƎƎŜǎǘ ǘƘŀǘ ǿŀǎ ŀƴ άŀŘǾƛǎŜŘ ǎŀƭŜέΦ /ƻƳƳŜǊŎƛŀƭ ƭŜƴŘƛƴƎ ƛǎ ŀƴ 

unregulated activity and lenders are not allowed to give advice (even though the Danske Credit 

Committee Ŏŀƭƭǎ ǘƘŜƛǊ ǇŜƻǇƭŜ ά!ŘǾƛǎŜǊǎέΦύ   In many other cases where advised sales have been 

proven, banks have torn up lending agreements and refunded all payments made over what the 

customer would have paid on a standard variable rate 

> Where banks have failed to warn customers about potential break costs, loans are usually deemed 

to have been mis-sold and customers have been refunded.  

> The high interest rate charged by the bank has no basis. Subsequently it has been shown from 

5ŀƴǎƪŜΩǎ ƻǿƴ ŎƻƴǘŜƳǇƻǊŀǊȅ ŘƻŎǳƳŜƴǘation ŀƴŘ ƳŀǊƪŜǘ άǎŎǊŜŜƴǎƘƻǘǎέ ǇǊƻǾƛŘŜŘ ōȅ ŀƴ ƛƴŘŜǇŜƴŘŜƴǘ 

consultant, that the banking industry expected interest rates to fall. It is therefore clear they were 

over-charging to boost their profit and bonuses, and improve their Balance Sheet. 

> The fact thŀǘ ǘƘŜ {ŜƳǇƭŜǎΩ ƭŜƴŘƛƴƎ ǿŀǎ ƻǾŜǊ ŀ мр-year period is also of concern. In many similar 

cases, banks routinely accept that fixed rate loans of more than 5 years should never have been sold 

and have made refunds accordingly.  The fact that the Semples loan was for 15 years made the 

breakage fee unaffordable and the loan inescapable (but the bonus for the bank personnel would 

likely to have been greater). 
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Conclusions         

The FOS’ assertion that the Semples should have known to make a complaint back in 2009 is highly 

questionable, but the assumption that, had they done so, the bank would have referred them to the 

FOS is flawed. At that time the FOS was considering very few complaints from micro-enterprises 

(and eligibility was changing) and the bank were under no legal / regulatory obligation to refer these 

complaints to them. Indeed, recent Freedom of Information Requests (FoIs) to the FCA (and a letter 

from FCA CEO Andrew Bailey on 20.11.17 to Mr Shannon MP), confirmed it was not until 2016 that 

banks were obliged to do so.  

 

The same FoIs revealed in 2016 /2017 that the FCA Executive Committee was not aware of the fact 

that unregulated activities for sales / complaints could fall under the FOS’ jurisdiction, so it is unlikely 

that dairy farmers would have understood this in 2009. Therefore the FOS’ opinion that the Semples 

should have brought their complaint to them earlier does not acknowledge historical facts whilst 

also confirming to Mr Shannon MP that they kept no detailed records of these banking complaints 

until July 2015. 

 

The FOS is able to consider cases where a cause for complaint is discovered up to 3 years previously. 

However, they say the Semples should have known this in 2009, even though at that time 

knowledge of bank misconduct was practically unheard of by the general public. In 2009 the Semples 

trusted their bank and were beholden to them and did not realise the full picture until the 

involvement of the uncle’s business colleague in March 2017. 

 

This family’s trust and naivety appear to have been their downfall and, despite having an apparently 

strong case, they have no access to justice.  This also appears to be an example of another highly 

questionable decision by the FOS which is not subject to an appeal.  There have been many such 

cases brought to the attention of the Treasury Select Committee (TSC) over the years; the Chair of 

which stated that they received 150 complaints in 2018 so far, which included this case …..  

 

https://www.parliament.uk/documents/commons-committees/treasury/Correspondence/181106-

Chair-to-Chief-Executive-of-Financial-Ombudsman-Service-ongoing-review-of-sample-cases.pdf 

 

End                                                             

An extract from a letter from Ordinary People in Business is also relevant  

Complete 4 page letter version in Appendix 1  pages 14-17.    

In their 20 March 2015 letter Ordinary People in Business Limited wrote, on behalf of those 

members who had entered into Fixed Rate Loans with mark-to-market break costs (‘Fixed Rate 

Loans’)”, to a former Economic Secretary to the Treasury Mrs Andrea Leadsom MP, (also a Treasury 

Select Committee member from July 2010 to May 2014) and would have seen many cases such as 

this illustrative example ……..………….   

https://www.parliament.uk/documents/commons-committees/treasury/Correspondence/181106-Chair-to-Chief-Executive-of-Financial-Ombudsman-Service-ongoing-review-of-sample-cases.pdf
https://www.parliament.uk/documents/commons-committees/treasury/Correspondence/181106-Chair-to-Chief-Executive-of-Financial-Ombudsman-Service-ongoing-review-of-sample-cases.pdf
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“To expect 70,000 people to complain to their bank is not realistic or fair. Here are the reasons why: 

1. Many people are completely unaware they have a ticking time-bomb of massive break fees 

which will go off whenever they need to amend their lending.  

2. They don’t know that there is a swap embedded in their Fixed Rate Loan.   

3. They don’t realise that all the sales practices which applied to swaps mis-selling also applied 

to Fixed Rate Loan mis-selling, ie. 

- their bank abused the inequity of knowledge between the parties to sell them interest 

rate protection they didn’t need  

- hedging by fixing is not a legitimate condition of lending 

- they could have bought a cap instead which would have offered them cheap but 

adequate interest rate protection if they had wanted it  

- bank personnel made large bonuses for selling Fixed Rate Loans which drove the sale 

- the product is detrimental to their business as it affects their credit line 

4. If they do realise what their product is they don’t really understand it (because they are 

unsophisticated) so don’t know how to argue their case properly. 

5. People think they don’t have cause for complaint because they asked for a Fixed Rate Loan 

because they ‘wanted to know where they are’ each month. They may have done but was 

normally on the reasonable assumption that it was just like a residential fixed-rate mortgage 

with a 1-3% break fee.  

6. People whose loans have expired don’t realise they can still complain. 

There are also many personal reasons why people don’t complain: 

1. Small businesses have a fear of taking on their bank. You acknowledged this and the 

‘unequal resources’ problem in the debate. People worry about upsetting their bank in case 

overdraft facilities are withdrawn or small-print covenants are enforced vindictively. It is a 

risk too big to take, especially when a personal guarantee over their family home is involved.  

2. Many businesspeople don’t have the self-belief to pursue a complaint because they still trust 

their bank and can’t believe they would do them harm.  

3. Many do not have the skills, energy or money to pursue a good quality complaint against a 

large and powerful organisation which will usually strenuously deny any wrongdoing and 

present customers with an officious brick wall.   

4. People blame themselves for their predicament or just think they backed the wrong horse so 

don’t have cause for complaint.  

5. In many cases the Relationship Manager who sold them the loan is the same person they 

still deal with, which would create animosity if they were to complain. 

6. Many are embarrassed or in denial about their situation and instead would rather just 

struggle on. Some have not even told their wives/husbands. 

7. Many would not want to make it public knowledge that they are in dispute with their bank 

which implies they are in financial difficulty, because of the effect that may have on their 

reputation in their community or with suppliers or customers.”      

 

Mrs Leadsom MP took no actions in that EST role from April 2014 – May 2015 as she moved 

shortly after the letter was sent.  Will she now as Leader in the House of Commons and create 

the necessary debate and HMG legislative time for this Banking subject matter?  
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Supplementary background information / evidence :  correspondence 

1.   As part of Mr Shannon MP research in to SME Finance from 27 August 2017 he created what he 

termed a number of MP/constituent “Experiences” with the FCA Regulator -  Experience B (1) was 

the Semples and as part of this Mr Jonathan Davidson -  FCA Executive Director Supervision – 

Retail and Authorisations stated the following in the relevant part of his letter (ref 180727A) dated 

14 August 2018   and followed Mr Shannon’s meeting on 23 July 2018 with Mr Bailey and him…  

A. “Semple family dispute with Danske Bank 

In your email of 16 June, you ask for an assessment of the case of the Semple family along the lines of 

those provided in the case of the Armstrongs. 

Again, there are two aspects to this case as raised by you. The first is what the information provided 

tells us about Danske Bank. The second is how the FCA has handled out interactions with Mr Little 

and Mr Semple. 

As you know from previous correspondence the FCA has no role in adjudicating individual complaints 

against financial services providers and there are limits to our jurisdiction in both the cases of the 

Semples and the Armstrongs.  However, we do expect banks to deal with all complaints fairly.  As 

such, and in light of the documentation you have sent the FCA in relation to the Semples, my staff 

have been liaising with the bank to better understand the issues and how the complaint is being 

addressed. 

Mr Little and Mr Semple on behalf of Derryduff believe that the farm was mis-sold a £1 million fixed 

rate loan (fixed for 15 years) by Danske Bank in 2008.  He believes that the bank priced the product 

at an unreasonably high rate (6.5%) and applied pressure on him to accept their offer.  He also 

alleges that he was not informed during the sales process about breakage costs which have been 

added to what Mr Semple considers inflated profits around the transaction on the part of the bank. 

In March this year Mr Semple redeemed the loan and switched his banking to HSBC. As the loan was 

originally due to run until 2024 a breakage cost of £62672 was applied. 

Mr Semple complained to Danske bank but was unhappy with how they responded to his complaint 

and took the right approach by raising it with the Financial Ombudsman Service. On 20 July, you 

shared with us a letter from the Financial Ombudsman Service to Mr Semple in which they confirmed 

ǘƘŀǘ ǘƘŜȅ ǿƻǳƭŘ ƴƻǘ ōŜ ŀōƭŜ ǘƻ ŎƻƴǎƛŘŜǊ aǊ {ŜƳǇƭŜΩǎ ŎŀǎŜΦ L ǳƴŘŜǊǎǘŀƴŘ ŦǊƻƳ aǊ [ƛǘǘƭŜΩǎ 

correspondence that Danske Bank is now considering a supplementary complaint from Mr Semple. 

My staff  ƘŀǾŜ ǊŜǾƛŜǿŜŘ ŜȄǘŜƴǎƛǾŜƭȅ ǘƘŜ ōŀƴƪΩǎ ƛƴƛǘƛŀƭ ŎƻƳǇƭŀƛƴǘ ǊŜǎǇƻƴǎŜΣ ŀƴŘ ǘƘŜ ǳƴŘŜǊƭȅƛƴƎ 

ŜǾƛŘŜƴŎŜ ƻƴ ǿƘƛŎƘ ƛǘ ŀǇǇŜŀǊǎ ǘƻ ōŜ ōŀǎŜŘΦ  ¢ƘŜȅ ŀƭǎƻ ŎƻƴǎƛŘŜǊŜŘ ǘƘŜ ōŀƴƪΩǎ ŀǇǇǊƻŀŎƘ ǘƻ ǘƘŜ 

complaint and how it had considered its decision. There are a number of complexities within this 

case, and it is evident that one of the key areas of contention relates to communication of the break 

cost. It is evident that Danske Bank and Mr Semple are at odds with respect to communication of the 

break cost prior to the loan agreement being signed. However, as you know, it is not our role to pass 

judgment on individual cases, but we will take action as part of our broader supervisory work with 

the firm if appropriate. We recognise that the recent response from the Financial Ombudsman 

Service will be a disappointment to Mr Semple.”     
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A.2 There was some follow up to his letter in an email in late October/Nov. 2018 – see section C1. 

B.   “COMPLAINT”  SUBMISSION DOCUMENTATION TO FOS and FCA – 31 October 2017 

SAR documentation available (after multiple attempts) and Documents Index together with nine 

witness statements.   

 

Ombudsman feedback -  which can be published as assisting in other submitting Complaints  

 

“Our ombudsman thought there was a useful summary of the complaint at the beginning, providing 

clear background to the complaint. The complaint was set out clearly ï  the documents were set out in 

a logical order and the evidence was well-referenced throughout. We scan documents onto our 

system, so the colour tabs put on individual documents can go astray in that process. For us, itôs 

probably easier to mark the paper document itself with any referencing number ï but that isnôt too 

much of an issue for us. 
  
There was a useful chronology, again with references to the documents provided. The file contained 

the sort of documents we would expect to see ï point of sale documents, witness statements, internal 

notes and call transcripts, correspondence with the bank. 
  
It was helpful to have the XXXXXX balance sheets and evidence to show us the XXXXXX was a 

small/medium business. Thatôs information we often need to ask for, so to have it already saves time.  
  
Some of the news articles that provided a bit of general background to the mis-selling issues and the 

House of Commons report probably didnôt need to be included. Our staff  are familiar with the 

general context and background to this type of dispute.”… FOS email 11 May 2018 

 

While the FCA who had received a duplicate set in October 2017 stated in a letter on 14 August 2018   

 

“My second observation is that I concur with the assessment of Mr Little and the Financial 

Ombudsman Service that the documentation provided by Mr Little and the Semples was detailed and 

of high quality…” 
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C.1.1   NO Appeal is available on any Ombudsman judgment so from July 2018 we considered and 

wrote to the FCA with the following reply to Mr Shannon MP on 9 November 2018  

“!ǎ ǿŜ ǳƴŘŜǊǎǘŀƴŘ aǊ [ƛǘǘƭŜΩǎ request of 22 October, he would like Jonathan to read the decision 

from the Financial Ombudsman Service. This says that the Financial Ombudsman Service finds the 

Semple case is time barred because from June 2009 the partners knew or ought to have known they 

had cause to complain ς ǎƻ ǘƘŜȅ ŀǊŜ ƴƻǘ ŀōƭŜ ǘƻ ƭƻƻƪ ŀǘ ǿƘŜǘƘŜǊ ǘƘŜ {ŜƳǇƭŜΩǎ ŎŀǎŜ Ƙŀǎ ƳŜǊƛǘ ƻǊ ƴƻǘΦ 

He would then like the FCA to critique that decision with reference to the wide-ranging document 

that was given to us at our meeting with you and Mr Little on 23 July. <Inserted 41 pages> He would 

ŀƭǎƻ ƭƛƪŜ ǳǎ ǘƻ ǊŜŦŜǊ ǘƻ !ƴŘǊŜǿΩǎ ƭŜǘǘŜǊ ƻŦ нл bƻǾŜƳōŜǊ ǿƘƛŎƘ ŘŜŀƭǘ ǿƛǘƘ ǘƘŜ {aϧ/wΣ ŎƻƴŘǳŎǘ ƛƴ ǊŜǘŀƛƭ 

banking, expansion of the Financial Ombudsman Service remit, the CMA review and complaints 

handling by firms amongst other things.   

Jonathan has read the decision and looked again at our past correspondence. As you know the FCA is 

not an adjudicator. This is the role of the Financial Ombudsman Service.  They are operationally 

independent of us and we have no power to intervene in their decisions. It would not be appropriate 

for the FCA to comment on their decision or how they reached it.  We understand from previous 

correspondence you have shared that you are already in contact with their CEO, Caroline Wayman. If 

you have concerns about processes or how these are applied you may like to raise these directly with 

ƘŜǊ ƻŦ ȅƻǳ ƘŀǾŜƴΩǘ ŀƭǊŜŀŘȅΦ  L ŀƳ ŀŦǊŀƛŘ WƻƴŀǘƘŀƴ ŀƭǊŜŀŘȅ ǎŜǘ ƻǳǘ ŀƭƭ ƘŜ Ŏŀƴ ƛƴ ǊŜƭŀǘƛƻƴ ǘƻ ǘƘŜ {ŜƳǇƭŜ 

case in his letter of 14 August where he also explaiƴŜŘ Ƙƻǿ ǿŜ ǳǎŜ ǘƘŜ ƛƴŦƻǊƳŀǘƛƻƴ ǿŜ ǊŜŎŜƛǾŜΦέ  

C.1.2 Until final review/conclusion with FCA no letter would be sent to FOS CEO Mrs Wayman.  

C.2   FOS apply the FCA  DISP 2.8.2 R 30/06/2016 RP   The Ombudsman cannot consider a complaint 

if the complainant refers it to the Financial Ombudsman Service: 

1. (1) more than six months after the date on which the respondent sent the complainant its 
final response, redress determination or summary resolution communication; or 

2. (2) more than:  
1. (a)six years after the event complained of; or (if later) 
2. (b) three years from the date on which the complainant became aware (or ought 

reasonably to have become aware) that he had cause for complaint; 

unless the complainant referred the complaint to the respondent or to the Ombudsman 
within that period and has a written acknowledgement or some other record of the 
complaint having been received; 

unless: 

1. (3) in the view of the Ombudsman, the failure to comply with the time limits in DISP 2.8.2 R 
or DISP 2.8.7 R was as a result of exceptional circumstances; or 

2. (4) the Ombudsman is required to do so by the Ombudsman Transitional Order; or 
3. (5) the respondent has consented to the Ombudsman considering the complaint where the 

time limits in DISP 2.8.2 R or DISP 2.8.7 R have expired (but this does not apply to a “relevant 
complaint” within the meaning of section 404B(3) of the Act). 

DISP 2.8.2A R 09/07/2015 RP  If a respondent consents to the Ombudsman considering a complaint 
in accordance with DISP 2.8.2 R (5), the respondent may not withdraw consent. 

https://www.handbook.fca.org.uk/handbook?related-provisions-for-provision=DISP%202.8.2
https://www.handbook.fca.org.uk/handbook/glossary/G794.html
https://www.handbook.fca.org.uk/handbook/glossary/G197.html
https://www.handbook.fca.org.uk/handbook/glossary/G419.html
https://www.handbook.fca.org.uk/handbook/glossary/G737.html
https://www.handbook.fca.org.uk/handbook/glossary/G2497.html
https://www.handbook.fca.org.uk/handbook/glossary/G411.html
https://www.handbook.fca.org.uk/handbook/glossary/G2895.html
https://www.handbook.fca.org.uk/handbook/glossary/G4550s.html
https://www.handbook.fca.org.uk/handbook/glossary/G197.html
https://www.handbook.fca.org.uk/handbook/glossary/G2497.html
https://www.handbook.fca.org.uk/handbook/glossary/G794.html
https://www.handbook.fca.org.uk/handbook/glossary/G197.html
https://www.handbook.fca.org.uk/handbook/glossary/G794.html
https://www.handbook.fca.org.uk/handbook/DISP/2/8.html#DES214
https://www.handbook.fca.org.uk/handbook/DISP/2/8.html#DES220
https://www.handbook.fca.org.uk/handbook/glossary/G794.html
https://www.handbook.fca.org.uk/handbook/glossary/G795.html
https://www.handbook.fca.org.uk/handbook/glossary/G2497.html
https://www.handbook.fca.org.uk/handbook/glossary/G794.html
https://www.handbook.fca.org.uk/handbook/glossary/G197.html
https://www.handbook.fca.org.uk/handbook/DISP/2/8.html#DES214
https://www.handbook.fca.org.uk/handbook/DISP/2/8.html#DES220
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2000/8/section/404B/2015-07-09#section-404B-3
https://www.handbook.fca.org.uk/handbook/glossary/G10.html
https://www.handbook.fca.org.uk/handbook?related-provisions-for-provision=DISP%202.8.2A
https://www.handbook.fca.org.uk/handbook/glossary/G2497.html
https://www.handbook.fca.org.uk/handbook/glossary/G794.html
https://www.handbook.fca.org.uk/handbook/glossary/G197.html
https://www.handbook.fca.org.uk/handbook/DISP/2/8.html#D478
https://www.handbook.fca.org.uk/handbook/glossary/G2497.html
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C.3.1. Within the FCA as the regulator their senior staff didn’t know what complaints were eligible 

or not to the FOS and that was in 2016 and 2017.. .. so it is not unreasonable to consider that 

senior FCA team would at least be more informed than the average SME – the Semples?   

FCA FOI 5699 et al   -     “Board Paper for Discussion – 7 December 2017  Page 9   

The proposals that EXCO approved in December 2016 are more effective in narrowing the existing 

redress gap than we anticipated at the time.  About 25% more SME disputes are likely to be eligible 

than previously expected , corresponding to up to 23,000 complaints referred to firms and up to 470 

complaints referred to the FOS per year.  This reflects the likely volume of complaints by newly 

eligible SMEs in relation to unregulated lending. (Figure 1 , pink shaded area).In total up to 1900 

additional SME complaints might be referred to the FOS each year, and up to 95,000 complaints 

referred to firms by newly eligible SMEs will now be subject to complaints handling rules. 

3.4   The December proposals will not close the redress gap in relation to high value disputes (due to 

the FOS award limit) and about 40,000 medium sized enterprises will remain ineligible to take a 

complaint to FOS.  Nevertheless we expect a reduction in harm even for those SMEs through 

changes to firm conduct and product design.   Newly eligible SMEs will have the option to refer 

complaints to the FOS, and FOS’s view of what is fair and reasonable in the circumstances of 

individual complaints may create precedent over time, which firms might consider in their dealings 

with SMEs.   

Annex 1 -  

Para 8  At the time of the EXCO decision we anticipated that our proposals would only apply to small 

business complaints about regulated products and services.   However, following further discussions 

with GCD, we now understand that the FOS jurisdiction, specifically in relation to lending, is wider 

than what we believed at the time of the EXCO decision in December 2016. The FOS can consider 

complaints about unregulated activities, specifically “lending money” and activities ancillary to 

this (Figure 1 , pink shaded area); and our complaints handling rules apply to these.  For example, 

the activities of GRG or the sale of loans with characteristics of IRHPs are within jurisdiction, and 

the FOS has considered such complaints.  However, many of the SMEs affected could not have 

taken their complaints to the FOS because they were larger than the existing FOS eligibility 

threshold.  

Para 9 In practice the FOS considers many lending-related business complaints to be outside its 

jurisdiction for reasons other than the size of the business or the products and services they are 

complaining about.  For example, a complaint referred by a former director of a dissolved company, 

or one in insolvency or administration proceedings , about the treatment of their company will not 

be eligible.  A complaint by a former director about their own treatment in relation to personal 

guarantees provided for the company loans will also not be eligible.  As a result, one third of all 

lending complaints by businesses are over 2.5 times as likely as lending related complaints by 

consumers to be out of jurisdiction or to be dismissed by the FOS. This ratio is much higher than for 

non lending complaints.”   
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C.3.2  Extract from FOS ruling  -  19 July 2018    (which is inconsistent with FCA Knowledge base and 

not what was actually happening in practice throughout Banking). 

“I accept that in 2009 there was little if anything in the public domain about the mis-selling of 

interest rate hedging products and fixed rate business loans.  But I don’t think it was necessary for 

the partners to be aware of any publicity around that issue in order to know that they had cause for 

a complaint. Their own circumstances and the events described by Mr W Semple meant that they 

knew, or ought to have known, they had cause for complaint.……….. 

The partners representative says they were busy farmers and didn’t know anything about                        

mis-selling, bank complaint procedures or the ombudsman service.  But I can’t say these are 

exceptional circumstances which would have prevented the partners from complaining to their bank 

about the problem with the loan. I think the partners could have complained to the bank without 

understanding the procedures it used to deal with complaints. And there was no need for the 

partners to know in advance about the ombudsman service, because the banks final response letter 

would have told them about this service.  That was an obligation on the bank in 2009, as it is today. 

In 2009 this service was able to accept complaints of this kind. 

The representative says the partners were reluctant to complain to the bank because they felt 

vulnerable, given the bank’s power as provider of finance.  But its not unusual for customers to have 

mixed feelings when complaining to firms which they rely on for financial services.  I don’t regard 

these as exceptional circumstances.” 

C.3.3   whilst in Andrew Bailey’s letter to Jim Shannon MP on 21 November 2017 he records  

Point 9    On improvements to Complaints handling and access to the Ombudsman Service   

άLƴ нллу ǘƘŜ C{! ŎƻƴǎǳƭǘŜŘ ƻƴ ŎƘŀƴƎŜǎ ǘƻ ǘƘŜ ǊǳƭŜǎ ǘƘŀǘ ŎƻǾŜǊ ǿƘƻ Ŏŀƴ ŎƻƳǇƭŀƛƴ ǘƻ ǘƘŜ hƳōǳŘǎƳŀƴΣ 

making micro enterprises eligible complainants.  Between 2010 and 2011, the FSA consulted on a 

ƴǳƳōŜǊ ƻŦ ŦǳǊǘƘŜǊ ŎƘŀƴƎŜǎ ǘƻ 5L{tΦ ¢ƘŜǎŜ ƛƴŎƭǳŘŜŘ ƛƴŎǊŜŀǎƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ hƳōǳŘǎƳŀƴ ǎŜǊǾƛŎŜΩǎ ŀǿŀǊŘ ƭƛƳƛǘ 

from £100,000 to its current value of £150,000 and requiring firms to identify a senior individual 

responsible for complaints handling. The rules came into effect from early 2012, and should result in 

more meaningful compensation for SMEs with higher-value disputes, where firms might have a lesser 

incentive to redress informally. 

In late 2014 we consulted on measures to improve complaints handling by retail financial services 

firms, including an obligation to notify eligible complainants that they can refer their complaints to 

the Ombudsman. All of these changes have been in force since June 2016 and should, taken together, 

result in greater awareness of the ombudsman service among SMEs. 

C.3.4 https://www.moneymarketing.co.uk/fos-to-accept-complaints-from-micro-enterprises/ 

Furthermore whilst we know the definition for eligibility of microenterprises was included from 2008 

in FOS - from April 2008 private individuals , small businesses with an annual turnover of less than 

£1m , charities with a yearly income of under £1m and trusts with net assets under £1m can make 

use of the scheme.”……….this under FOS “voluntary jurisdiction”. 

 

https://www.moneymarketing.co.uk/fos-to-accept-complaints-from-micro-enterprises/
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It was not until 1 November 2009 that this was extended by EEC legislation with a new definition for 

microenterprises for the type of businesses that can bring complaints to the FOS in line with 

European Union Law.  Only private individuals and micro-enterprises can bring a complaint to the 

ombudsman..  .include within its scope the complaint would have been eligible from Derryduff..see 

link.   A micro enterprises is defined as a company with an annual turnover of under 2 Million euros , 

or approximately £1.7m, and fewer than 10 employees. 

C3.5   For the record In any event Danske did nothing about the remarks / criticism at a meeting on       

6 April 2016 of Mr Brian Little and the Head of Agribusiness (Minutes at FOS/FCA Documents bundle 

N20) and Mr Robert McCullagh responded to the minutes (FOS/FCA Documents bundle N21)                                       

“You will understand that I’m not in agreement with Brian in terms of his assertion that the banks 

made supernormal profits on the loan”.  

C3.6  When their representative (Mr Little) made a written supplementary complaint on 30 April 

2018 in relation to the ACTUAL break process and cost/fees charged by Danske in March 2018 

Danske completely ignored it.  The FOS and FCA were provided with copies of the complaint sent 

directly to the Danske Complaints person - both electronically and on paper by Registered Post. 

(FOS/FCA Documents bundle.A12 pages 129 and 130 ςpreceded by the email exchanges setting out 

evidence for complaint on Pages 120 ς 129.) Furthermore we note that the FOS Ombudsman Mr 

Colin Brown made absolutely NO reference to this Supplementary Complaint to Danske in their 

Ombudsman judgment on 19 July 2018 or their covering letter – given it specifically relates to the 

actual conduct and excessive fees charged by Danske when Derryduff broke the loan to enable them 

to change to their new Bank, HSBC AND was three weeks after the Supplementary complaint on 30 

April 2018 should have been acknowledged and responded to by Danske.  

Danske Complaints Policy on website       You can contact us as follows: 

 In person  
Visit any of our branches and talk to one of our team. You can find your nearest branch and its 
opening hours from our Branch finder. 

 Online  
Click on the 'Complaints' link at the bottom of the page. On the Complaints page click on the 'Make a 
complaint' link and submit your feedback using our online form. 

 In writing  
You can write to us at Danske Bank, PO Box 2111, Belfast, BT10 9EG. 

 By phone  
You can call us on 0345 600 2882. When you call you’ll need to have your account information handy.  
(Lines are open between 8am and 8pm Monday to Friday and between 9am and 4.30pm on Saturdays 
and Sundays, except for bank holidays or other holidays in Northern Ireland when the bank is not 
open for business. We may record or monitor calls to confirm details of our conversations, and for 
training and quality purposes.) 

One of our complaint handlers will make sure that your complaint is fully investigated and try to deal with the 
matter in a way you are satisfied with. We will deal with all complaints promptly and impartially (that is, in a 
fair and unbiased way).  

We will try to resolve your complaint by the close of business on the third business day after receipt of the 
complaint. If your complaint is resolved within three business days you will receive a ‘summary resolution 
communication’ from us. The summary resolution communication will be in writing and will: 

https://www.danskebank.co.uk/en-gb/Personal/customer-service/Find-your-nearest-branch/Pages/Find-your-nearest-branch.aspx
https://www.danskebank.co.uk/en-gb/Personal/customer-service/Find-your-nearest-branch/Pages/Find-your-nearest-branch.aspx
https://www.danskebank.co.uk/en-gb/Personal/customer-service/Find-your-nearest-branch/Pages/Find-your-nearest-branch.aspx
https://www.danskebank.co.uk/en-gb/About-the-bank/Complaints/Pages/Complaints.aspx
https://www.danskebank.co.uk/en-gb/About-the-bank/Complaints/Pages/make-a-complaint.aspx
https://www.danskebank.co.uk/en-gb/About-the-bank/Complaints/Pages/make-a-complaint.aspx
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 tell you that we consider your complaint has been resolved 

 give you information about referring your complaint to the Financial Ombudsman Service if you are 
dissatisfied 

If we have not resolved your complaint by the close of business on the third business day after we receive 
your complaint, we will send you a letter acknowledging your complaint. This letter may also include our 
final response to your complaint. If we need more time to investigate your complaint, we will keep you 
informed of the steps we are taking to deal with it. 

If your complaint is in relation to a payment service within 15 business days (or in exceptional circumstances 
by the end of 35 business days) and in all other cases, within eight weeks of receiving your complaint we will 
send you a letter explaining:        our final response or  why we cannot provide a final response yet, and 
when we expect to be able to do this 

C3.7     Mr Shannon MP brought this failure by Danske to deal with the Supplementary Complaint in 

relation to the actual break process and Danske charges in March 2018 to the attention of the FCA 

CEO Mr Bailey and his team when they met at Westminster on 23 July 2018.  You may recall that Mr 

Davidson, who was also present, recorded in his letter dated 14 August 2018 (Part A) that     

“However, we do expect banks to deal with all complaints fairly.  As such, and in light of the 

documentation you have sent the FCA in relation to the Semples, my staff have been liaising with the 

bank to better understand the issues and how the complaint is being addressed.ò 

C3.8   A couple of weeks later the Semples received a letter dated 9 July 2018 from Danske which 

stated    “It has come to our attention that we have overlooked your supplementary complaint 

sent To Danske on 30 April 2018.  Please accept our sincere apologies for this oversight. 

We’d like to reassure you that this matter will now be investigated and will respond to you by 16 

July 2018.” 

C3.9 . No response from Danske was received by 16 July 2018.  A Danske letter dated 27 July 2018 

was subsequently received by the Semples in which Danske began their letter dated 27 July 2018 

with “………..please accept my apologies that issues raised in your correspondence received via 

email on the 30th April 2018 were not addressed.”   Firstly please note this was outside Danske 

scheduled time period for dealing with complaints as set out on their website as it should have been 

dealt with by late June 2018.  Secondly the FOS had sight of ALL these exchanges but it was, in our 

view from the evidence, that the intervention of the FCA was central in getting Danske to pay 

attention. We ask the reader to consider that given the multiple pieces of correspondence being 

circulated to both the FOS and the FCA and that Danske staff were under the “spotlight” that they 

would take considerable care in handling the supplementary complaint and the actual Break process 

and costs from March to May 2018.  

The Danske letter confirmed that the process and staff decisions had been wrong and the costs of 

£5072 charged from 22 March 2018 to 15 May 2018 (when debt was fully repaid in moving to HSBC) 

was wrong and “Accordingly, the Bank is prepared to offer you the total sum of £4000.00 by way 

of refund of interest and redress and I trust that this offer is acceptable to you”.   Mr Semple 

confirmed that he considered that the offer was satisfactory for the supplementary complaint only 
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but still considered the original claim, which had been forensically verified at £420K, was still entirely 

valid and we intended to pursue. 

Conclusions -  Does anyone seriously believe that this FOS Judgment was with due regard to all the 

circumstances in the case; had Mr Semple even known to make a formal complaint in late June 

2009  he would never have had a credible chance of a proper consideration of the Claim / mis-

selling. Remember he was under the threat/duress of additional security etc,  from his Danske 

Account Manager, who was the first line for investigation of the complaint AND in 2009 there was 

no Danske internal “independence” review or awareness/notification of FOS as an adjudicator.  

Naturally one should also view this against the subsequent Danske conduct, which was specifically 

alarming when you have the FOS and FCA senior team “watching” Danske conduct from 

November 2017 to July 2018, through the lens of all the documentation processes provided 

electronically and on paper by the Semple representatives. 

We believe that without the FCA meeting with Mr Shannon MP on 23 July 2018, and the 

immediately prior intervention of the FCA senior team, Danske misconduct and behaviour would 

have continued “unchecked” in the “unregulated” business and redress from Danske for those 

£4000 excess charges would never have been offered to the Semples.  

We consider that FOS were, and are wrong, and in view of other case evidence and research are 

NOT competent to carry out “adjudication” in these types of banking cases;  AND of course some 

of the contextual and circumstantial facts set out in that Ombudsman judgment on 19 July 2018 

are wrong.  

As stated earlier, if within the FCA as the regulator senior staff didn’t know what complaints were 

eligible or not to the FOS …..  and that was in 2016 and 2017, .. .. is it not reasonable to consider 

that the senior FCA team would at least be more informed than the average SME ??  i.e.  like the 

Semples who were spending 8 -12 hours in a milking parlour seven days a week. 

         House of Commons   -  Early Day Motion – 16 April 2018 

 



14 
 

Appendix  1     

 

Ordinary People in Business Ltd 

Unit 5 St Saviour’s Wharf 

23-25 Mill Street 

London 

SE1 2BE 

Mrs Andrea Leadsom 

House of Commons 

London 

SW1A 0AA 

 

20th March 2015 

 

Dear Mrs Leadsom 

I am writing to you on behalf of those members of Ordinary People in Business who have entered 

into Fixed Rate Loans with mark-to-market break costs (‘Fixed Rate Loans’). 

As you know, the Treasury Select Committee (TSC) published its report into SME lending on 10th 

March (‘the Report’). It was damning of the Clydesdale Bank’s behaviour, suggesting that it had mis-

sold Tailored Business Loans (TBLs) and it exposed a catalogue of misconduct relating to their sale. 

The Report also confirmed what has been known about Fixed Rate Loans for some time, ie. that they 

are effectively the same as vanilla swaps. It quoted the FCA, ‘TBLs have a very similar economic 

impact to an IRHP coupled with a variable rate loan.’ This is demonstrated in the attached ‘Hidden 

Swaps Illustration’ document prepared by Nick Stoop of Warwick Rick Management.  

It also confirmed that the Clydesdale deliberately designed the product to avoid regulation, ‘It 

created TBLs to avoid requirements imposed by the regulator on the sale of a regulated product, 

IRHPs’ and ‘Clydesdale created a product that retained the risks and complexities of the regulated 

product, but had none of the safeguards.’ 

It also showed that the sale of TBLs was highly commission-led. A former employee revealed that the 

bank had a culture in which there was a ‘pressure to sell at all costs that was driven from the top of 

the organisation’ and ‘staff who did not meet targets faced disciplinary action’. 



15 
 

As a Clydesdale customer who has seven fixed-rate TBLs in the family, I was delighted to see that 

bank singled out for criticism for mis-selling Fixed Rate Loans. However, I have to point out that the 

Clydesdale is only responsible for selling about 12% of the total. All banks and building societies did 

it.  

Martin Wheatley said there were ‘about 60,000’ sold but this is an underestimate because he only 

included the top 5 banks and no building societies. He also only included sales since December 2001 

– an erroneous date because it refers to the start date of FSA regulation which does not apply to 

unregulated products. The number is therefore well over 70,000. 

Bully-Banks’ survey on Fixed Rate Loans sales has shown almost identical patterns of mis-selling to 

that which was found with standalone swaps. From our survey data, over 95% of Fixed Rate Loans 

also appear to have been mis-sold. In the last IRHP mis-selling debate you said of swap mis-selling 

that customers ‘lacked the necessary skills and knowledge to fully understand the risks of these 

products’ and that businesses ‘should receive appropriate redress’. This is no different for Fixed Rate 

Loans. 

Fundamentally, swaps are inappropriate and potentially very dangerous products for SMEs. The 

attached concise document by Nick Stoop explains this. Anyone who understands derivatives and 

also understands SMEs knows this but the core fact needs to be recognised by Government. The 

heart of the problem is the parroting by the FCA of the bank’s self-serving view that complex 

derivatives are somehow appropriate for SMEs. It is a tired and discredited line. 

Sir Edward Garnier QC MP – the former Solicitor General for England and Wales - expressed the 

issues very clearly in the debate.  Sir Edward dismissed as absurd the notion that the businessman 

he referred to would knowingly expose his wife and his company to ‘a product that would place 

them in such dire jeopardy’. He went on to say ‘it is high time that the FCA… stopped pulling its 

punches with the salespeople… in order to ensure that honest dealing is what we get from our 

bank.’ I could not agree more. 

The FCA Review has shown that IRHPs were widely mis-sold – and these were to SMEs who knew 

they were buying a swap. Fixed Rate Loans contain swaps but the customers didn’t even know that 

when they took them out, and most still don’t! I have also attached a redacted ‘Swap Report’ on a 

Fixed Rate Loan sold in 2007 which shows beyond doubt the true nature and consequences of these 

products. Table 6 is particularly telling. 

I am in contact with Guto Bebb and a number of TSC members and I know they are very sympathetic 

to the problem and have tried to find a way forward. It was also comforting to see the number of 

MPs who raised the issue in the last debate and I was pleased how much time was devoted to the 

discussion. 

You will no doubt be aware that the TSC’s QC agreed with the FCA that the products did not fall 

under Article 85 of FSMA (RAO) 2001 rendering them unregulated, which means that the banks are 

currently immune to the possibility of a systematic FCA review of Fixed Rate Loan mis-selling. We at 

Bully-Banks found the legal opinion weak and do not agree with this interpretation of the statute. 

We are seeking our own expert QC opinion but this will take time and in the meantime customers 

who have experienced Fixed-Rate Loan mis-selling are at sea.  
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To expect 70,000 people to complain to their bank is not realistic or fair. Here are the reasons why: 

7. Many people are completely unaware they have a ticking time-bomb of massive break fees 

which will go off whenever they need to amend their lending.  

8. They don’t know that there is a swap embedded in their Fixed Rate Loan.   

9. They don’t realise that all the sales practices which applied to swaps mis-selling also applied 

to Fixed Rate Loan mis-selling, ie. 

- their bank abused the inequity of knowledge between the parties to sell them interest 

rate protection they didn’t need  

- hedging by fixing is not a legitimate condition of lending 

- they could have bought a cap instead which would have offered them cheap but 

adequate interest rate protection if they had wanted it  

- bank personnel made large bonuses for selling Fixed Rate Loans which drove the sale 

- the product is detrimental to their business as it affects their credit line 

10. If they do realise what their product is they don’t really understand it (because they are 

unsophisticated) so don’t know how to argue their case properly. 

11. People think they don’t have cause for complaint because they asked for a Fixed Rate Loan 

because they ‘wanted to know where they are’ each month. They may have done but was 

normally on the reasonable assumption that it was just like a residential fixed-rate mortgage 

with a 1-3% break fee.  

12. People whose loans have expired don’t realise they can still complain. 

There are also many personal reasons why people don’t complain: 

8. Small businesses have a fear of taking on their bank. You acknowledged this and the 

‘unequal resources’ problem in the debate. People worry about upsetting their bank in case 

overdraft facilities are withdrawn or small-print covenants are enforced vindictively. It is a 

risk too big to take, especially when a personal guarantee over their family home is involved.  

9. Many businesspeople don’t have the self-belief to pursue a complaint because they still trust 

their bank and can’t believe they would do them harm.  

10. Many do not have the skills, energy or money to pursue a good quality complaint against a 

large and powerful organisation which will usually strenuously deny any wrongdoing and 

present customers with an officious brick wall.   

11. People blame themselves for their predicament or just think they backed the wrong horse so 

don’t have cause for complaint.  

12. In many cases the Relationship Manager who sold them the loan is the same person they 

still deal with, which would create animosity if they were to complain. 

13. Many are embarrassed or in denial about their situation and instead would rather just 

struggle on. Some have not even told their wives/husbands. 

14. Many would not want to make it public knowledge that they are in dispute with their bank 

which implies they are in financial difficulty, because of the effect that may have on their 

reputation in their community or with suppliers or customers. 

The FOS is not the answer for dealing with this problem either. The compensation limit of £150k 

sadly does not ‘cover the vast majority of cases’ as you stated in the debate. Indeed many 

businesses are excluded from the FOS anyway on the basis of their staff numbers so have nowhere 

to go. My personal opinion is that it is too much to expect the FOS to handle such complex and 

important decisions as they are not equipped to do so.  
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The legal route to redress is far beyond the means of most SMEs. In any case most sales will now be 

out of the 6-year time limitation. 

Given the systematic misconduct by the Clydesdale highlighted by the TSC Report, and the fact 

that all banks and building societies sold identical products, it should be clear that this is another 

serious example of widespread customer abuse. There is no need for a pilot study - our survey 

contains the data. 

SMEs are indeed as you said in the debate, the ‘lifeblood of the economy’. You said that the finding 

that 91% of IRHPs were mis-sold was ‘a totally shocking statistic’ and you pledged that ‘where there 

has been wrong-doing the Government does not condone it’. I therefore believe the Government 

needs to do much more to help them over Fixed Rate Loan mis-selling. 

Even if the FSMA Article 85 argument about the regulatory status of Fixed Rate Loans reaches a 

stalemate, there is no doubt that banks and building societies are still guilty of widespread 

misconduct and systematic breaches of the Business Banking Code.  

All businesses with Fixed Rate Loans should be contacted proactively by the banks and building 

societies as they were in the FCA IRHP Review. This must be done in a co-ordinated way to ensure 

that complaints are properly and consistently investigated. I have a long wish-list for a Fixed Rate 

Loans Review which I shared with Guto previously and I am happy to provide it if requested. 

Someone has to oversee this. I see no reason why it cannot be the FCA; as part of the FCA ‘voluntary 

review’ of IRHPs over 2,000 complex TBLs sold by the Clydesdale were also reviewed. These products 

are not regulated but I believe the sales of these products were reviewed in the same way.  

If the FCA continues to say it cannot get involved, then the Government needs to find a way of 

putting a new team in place to co-ordinate this as soon as possible. Considering the criticisms the 

FCA have received over the IRHP Review maybe this would be the best solution.  

If you wish to meet to discuss these points I am happy to do so. 

Yours sincerely 

 

Dr Fiona Sherriff 

Director, Ordinary People in Business Ltd 

 

cc Mark Garnier MP, Guto Bebb MP 
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Section 2.    Case Documents disclosure – experience to date etc 

Timeline 

A> 25 May 2017   Semples send Subject Access Request (SAR) to Danske (Doc.37)  which begins 

“Could you please regard this letter as formal Subject Access Request Applications. 

In terms of information we would request all data/information on Northern Bank and Danske Bank 

files – including audio – for the last 10 years.”  

B> 30 June 2007   Letter from Danske with initial SAR documentation received in early July (Doc.39)  

C> 26 July 2017    Letter from Semples highlighting deficiencies in SAR disclosure (Doc.42)  No 

acknowledgment was received from Danske which prompted a further letter (D). 

D> 15 August 2017  Follow up letter from Semples highlighting that other than the Credit Committee 

submissions there are only two new documents disclosed and again no audio recordings or 

transcripts had been disclosed.   (Doc.43) 

E> 23 August 2017  Danske letter saying “All retrievable information has been collated and is 

enclosed.  Any information not enclosed in no longer retrievable.”  (Doc.44). this now includes 

several new documents (e.g.N.31) and transcripts of the key audio recordings with the exception of 

one telecom/transcript in late June 2009 (not sure it exists). 

Following the above the Documents index was updated to include all the additional documents. 

Derryduff Farm Limited and Danske Bank (NI)  - submission to Financial Ombudsman : FCA  
                                                      DOCUMENTS INDEX  

 
C:  If the number is preceded by a C then the Danske Credit Committee Submission document has 
been provided by Danske as part of the SAR request and naturally was not available during usual 
business processes to the Semple Partnership – C1, C3, C6, C12, C14, C16, C18, C19, C25 and C32.  
 
D. Number.U  - these are documents or audio recording transcripts which either Danske have 
decided not to disclose, as part of this SAR and/or “complaint” process, or unavailable– see letter 
dated 18 Sept 2017 (doc 48) to Grainne Mackle &  Manager – Handling Services Dept.  As of                    
13 October 2017 these have not been provided and there has been no advice from Danske.             
These are documents D.5.U <D.5.A>, D.6.U <D.6.A>, S7-3U <D.7-3A> and D.16.U <D.16.A>.None  
 
N:   If the number is preceded by a N then the document has been in Danske possession but was 
NOT disclosed as part of the SAR request on 25 May 2017 / Danske disclosure – 30 June 2017 – and 
is relevant evidence in relation  to this Fixed Term Loan – N20, N21, N22, N28, N30 and N31. 
 
S:   If the number is preceded by an S then the document HAS been provided by Danske as part of 
the SAR request 25 May 2017 and subsequent disclosure on 30 June 2017 and were NOT previously 
in the Semple Partnership possession – documents S4, S7 and S9. Documents S7-1,S7-2 and S7-4 
were disclosed after follow up requests in letters July (Doc 42) and August 2017 (Doc 43).  
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Number                                           Document title/reference                                                  Date (s) 

C 1.        Danske Credit Committee submission for Derryduff farm (Page 1 only)           12 June 2007 

………70  Letter from Mr Semple to Danske Customer Resolution Manager               5 September 2008   

Other  documents referred to in draft covering letters to FOS with complaint  – 16 October 2017     

A.1.   Schedule of One month Libor UK daily rates from 15 September 2008  - 22 December 2008 - 21 Jan.2009 
and  Bank of England (BOE) Official  Base Rate history from January 2008. 
 
….  A.12.   Collation of Email exchanges between Danske and Semple Partnership between 6 April 2016 and 5 

September 2018  - 137 pages at  Rev.12. 

Sample Case documentation – Ombudsman or Financial Services Tribunal 

The Position Statement from the All-Party Parliamentary Group on Fair Business Banking dated 14 

November 2018 states at Page 4 “For those cases that are not resolved within this six month 

timeframe, there will be a duty of disclosure of documentation by the Banks, which will be in 

accordance with the legal Civil Procedure Rules (CPR) 31, 31A and 31b and certified by the 

ŀǇǇǊƻǇǊƛŀǘŜ ǇŜǊǎƻƴ ǳƴŘŜǊ ǘƘŜ C/!Ωǎ {ŜƴƛƻǊ aŀƴŀƎŜǊǎ ŀƴŘ Certification Regime (SM&CR) and the case 

moves to independent dispute resolution. “    …… or equivalent in their Civil Courts jurisdiction.                       

 

In accordance with the APPG Fair Business Banking statement above, and Mr Semples solicitors 

letter dated 3 December 2018 to the Danske CEO Mr Kevin Kingston, Danske Bank will have until 

Monday 3 June 2019 to reach an agreed solution with the Semples, or alternatively provide any 

additional relevant documents so the Semples can decide whether they refer their complaint to the 

“Ombudsman” or a Financial Services Tribunal case later in June 2019.  

 

3 December 2018 

 

http://fortfield.com/casefiles/Sample.Case.documentation.Ombudsman.Financial.Services.Tribunal.pdf

